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Linda

From: "Bermie Waugh" <bernie.waugh@gardner-fulton.com>

Date: Wednesday, December 05, 2012 3:21 PM

To: ' "Linda" <mtview(@roadrunner.com>

Ce: "Bill Dowling" <billdowling]@roadrunner.com>; “Donna Foster" <fostercpm@roadrunner.com>; "Erik Bergun"

<ebergum@worldsurfer.net>; "Ernie Temple" <gerniet@roadrunner.com>; "Evan Karpf"
<drevannh@gmail.com>; "Kenneth Mills" <skydive3995@gmail.com>; "Richard Nelson"
<NelsonRA25@gmail.com>; <twinmtn@roadrunner.com>

Subject: RE: Bond language
Hi Linda:

I'm sorry I didn't respond previously on this, and Evan tells me by phone that the Board is going to act on this

tomorrow. At the end of this E-mail is what | would suggest for the total wording of Section 4.19 of the Subdivision
Regulations, based on the wording of that section as appears on your website and the suggested language you
sent. | think most of my draft is self-explanatory, but specific comments are as follows:

e [ do strongly recommend that you add an irrevocable letter of credit as one of the security options.
Generally these are more flexible than surety company bonds, and cause the least problems when you iruly
need to call on the maney.

o | agree that the form of any bond or letter of credit should be reviewed by legal counsel at the expense of
the applicant.

¢ | agree that the security should be issued in the name of the owner or applicant as the secured party (the
party which underiakes the obligation to perform the work by having sought approval) — rather than, for
example, that person or entity's agent or contracior.

e | do not see why the engineer providing the estimates has to provide & notarized letter. The key thing is that
the engineer be one acceptable to the Board.

e | don't see any need for your reguiations to mandate a specific security template, as long as each bond (or
whatever) is subiect to legal review.

e The cash or savings book is OK to keep in there (if the Board wants to retain it as an option) — the anly legal
aspect of that is that cash or passbook cannot be the onfy type of security the Town will accept.

e The last paragraph of this secticn (covering maintenance security) is unclear and | have attempted to re-
work it  bit.

e State law RSA 676:12 prohibits a town from withholding building permits if proper security has been
provided.

e Obviausly my draft does not constituie your only option. To some degree it incorporates policy choices --
which are of course up to the Board, not to me. 1 have tried to make as few changes from the existing
regulations as possible, in terms of the policy options.

4.19 Performance and Maintenance Security; Phased Development.

A. Except in the case of a subdivision in which each lot is on an existing improved Town road and no
utilities other types of public improvements are required, no subdivision plat filed with the Board shall be given final
approval by being signed, or shall be recorded in the Registry of Deeds, until the subdivider shall have filed with
the Board an estimate, submitted by an engineer acceptable to the Board, of the costs of streets, drainage
structures, utilities, and any other public improvements, together with an estimate of any potential damages to any
axisting public streats abutting the proposed subdivision, which may be caused by reason of the work to be
performed as part of said subdivision, together with maps, plans and supporting data, accompanied by one of the

following:

1. Cash, or a savings bank book, properly endorsed by the Town, in an amount to be determined by the
Board, to be deposited in escrow with the Town's governing body, or
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2. A surely bond. issued hy a surety company authorized to do business in New Hampshire, in an
armount to be determined by the Board, to be deposited with the governing hody, or

3. An irrevocable letter of credit from a bank authorized to do business in New Hampshire. in an amount
to be determined by the Board.

B. The amount of the security shall be based upon the submissions in paragraph A above, and shall include fees
for the inspection of improvements by agents of the Town as set forth in C below. A security bond or irrevocable
letter of credit shall comply with the foliowing:

1. The format shall be reviewed by the Town's legal counsel at the expense of the applicant.

2. The secured party named in the bond or letier of credit shall be the person or entity which is legally
obligated by the Board's decision to perform the work (usually the landowner or applicant).

3. The bond or letter of credit shall include a clear and detailed description of the work to be performed, or
a specific cross-reference to a document where such work is detailed {for example board minutes or a

notice of action), together with the date of the board's approval.
4. The bond or letter of credit shall also contain a specific reference to the deadline by which the

improvements are required to be completed, according to the Board's decision and regulations, and shall
not be subject fo expiration or cancellation until a date at least six months later than that deadline; provided.
however, that the Board may, in its discretion, accept & bond or letter of credit which is capable of expiration
or cancellation prior to that time, but only if it also provides, on its face:

(a) That at least 60 days prior to any such cancellation or expiration, nofice of the date
thereof must be required to be sent by certified mail to (i) the Chair of the Planning Board, (ii) the
Town's Land Use Board Secretary, and the Chair of the Board of Selectmen; and

(b) That if the Town receives such notice of cancellation or expiration prior to the completion of the
required work, and has not received any replacement security which conforms to these regulations,
then such notice shall entitle the Town to call the security prior to the expiration, and utilize said
amount to perform the work.

C. The performance security shall not be released until the Board of Selectmen, Building Inspector, Town
Engineer, or Road Agent (as appropriate) has certified to the Board that the streets, utilities, and other required
improvements have been completed in substantial accordance with the requirements of the Board, and all
necassary easements, rights-of-way and drainage easements are submitted in a form satisfactory to the Town's

legat counsel. All recording fees shall be borne by the subdivider.

D. As an alternative to providing securlity as set forth in A and B above, and if permitted by the Board, the
suhdivider may elect to complete alt streets and other public improvements prior to the final approvai and recording
of the plat, and prior to the issuance of any building permits. If this alternative is utilized, final approval and
recording of the plat shall occur only after inspection and certification as set forth in C above.

E. If a development is proposed to occur in phases, then each phase must be presented to the Board separately
for approval, and each phase separately will be subject fully to the security requirements contained in this Section
All streets and other requirements in one phase must be complated prior to final approval of any subsequent

phase.
F. Upon compietion of the improvements and approval by the Town as set forth in C above, the Board may,

upon recommendation by its engineer, require security guaranteeing the maintenance Qf the improvements, and/or
securing them against fatent defects, for a period not to exceed two (2) years from the time of such completion.

ok oW %

Please don't hesitate to get back to me with comments or questions.

Sincerely,
Bernie Waugh
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6.1 National Flood Insurance Requirements for Subdivision and Site Plan Review
Regulations

For subdivisions and site plans that involve land designated as “Special Flood Hazard Area”
(SFHA) by the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP):

A. The Planning Board shall review the proposed development to assure that all necessary
permits have been received from those governmental agencies from which approval is
required by Federal or State law, including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act Amendments of 1972,33 U.S.C. 1334.

B. The Planning Board shall require that all proposals for development greater than 50 lots
or 5 acres, whichever is lesser, include Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data within such
proposals (i.e. floodplain boundary and 100-year elevation).

C. The Planning Board shall require the applicant to submit sufficient evidence
(construction drawings, grading and land treatment plans) so as to allow a determination
that:

6} all such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage;

(ii)  all public utilities and facilities, such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems
are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage; and

(iii) adequate drainage is provided so as to reduce exposure to flood hazards.
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Linda

From: "legalinquiries” <legal_inquiries@nhlgc.org>
Date: Tuesday, October 09, 2012 9:09 AM

To: <mtview@roadrunner.com>

Subject:  Town of Carroll - 10/8/12 CF

Dear Ms. Dowling:
The answer really depends on what, exactly, the members of the subcommittee are doing.

Initially, it is useful to note that a subcommittee of the Planning Board is, on its cwn, a public body subject to the
statute. A “meeting” is defined as “the convening of the quorum of the membership of a public body...whether
in person, by means of telephone or electronic communication, or in any other manner such that all
participating members are able to communicate with each other contemporaneously...for the purpose of
discussing or acting upon a matter or matters over which the public body has supervision, control, jurisdiction,
or advisory power.” RSA 91-A:2, 1. A subcommittee of a public body is explicitly defined as its own public body.
RSA 91-A:1-a, VI(d).

Thus, if two or three of the subcommittee members are “convening” to “discuss or act upon” the information-
gathering task they have been assigned, then it is probably a meeting that requires notice, minutes, and
openness to the public. On the other hand, if the individual members are passing along information in one
direction and not discussing the information, then it is probably not a meeting. For example, if member A sends
members B and C an email with information saying “here is what | found,” there is nothing wrong with that.
That is a distribution of information and presents no problem. However, if 8 Writes back and says “this is
interesting, maybe we need to get more informatian about some other things,” and then C writes back and says
“no, t don’t think we need to do that,” what is really happening is a discussion. Under RSA S1-A:2, |, “discussion”
of the matter within their advisory power is something that is supposed to occur only at meetings which are

properly held.

 note, additionally, that any records relating to the subcommittee’s official function (i.e., gathering information)
which are circulated to a quorum (here, 2t least 2 members) becomes a “governmental record” under RSA 91~
A:l-a, Il. That does not mean that the records must be kept for any specific length of time, but as long as they
exist, they are governmental records which must be made available to the public upon request under RSA 91-

A:4 unlass an exemption applies.

[ hope this information is helpful.

Regards,

Christine Filimore

Staff Attorney

NH Local Government Center

25 Triangle Park, P.O. Box 617

Concord, NH 03302-0617

800-852-3358 ext. 3408 / legalinquiries@nhige.org

This transmission from the Legal Services and Government Affairs Department of the Loeal Government Center contains privileged and confidential
information. [t is intended for use by the individual or entity named above. If you are not the intended recipicnt, be aware that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or use of the contents is prohibited. If you receive this transmission in error, please notify us by telephone at (603) 224-7447, ext. 3048 or email
at ke inquirie: « nhize.ore so that we can take appropriate steps to protect confidentiality and/for attorney-client privilege of this information. Thank you.

From: Linda [mailto:mwiew@roadrunner.com]
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